CITY OF NORTON SHORES
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
September 14, 2021
5:30 p.m.

Agenda

1. Callto Order
2. Roll Call

3. Minutes
a. Minutes of August 10, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting

4. Correspondence
5. Pending Business

6. New Business
a. Site plan review — 2649, 2651, & 2689 Vulcan Street, Progressive AE/Cardinal Senior
Management
i. Certification of mailing and publishing
ii. Public hearing
iii. Resolution
b. Special Use Permit — 6025 Harvey Street, Paradigm Design/Oasis of Norton Shores
i. Certification of mailing and publishing
ii. Public hearing
iii. Resolution

7. Public Comment

8. Adjournment

THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 5:30 P. M. AT THE NORTON SHORES BRANCH
LIBRARY, 705 SEMINOLE ROAD



AGENDA__ 3o

CITY OF NORTON SHORES DATE_9Q-14-2I

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
August 10, 2021

A regular meeting of the Norton Shores Planning Commission was called to order on Tuesday, August 10,

2021 at 5:30 p.m. in the community room of the Norton Branch Library, 705 Seminole Road.

Present: Chairman Morano and Commissioners Bush, Carroll, Lowe, Westgate, Drier, Philips, Sipovic
and Trygstad; also, Ted Woodcoek, Sarah Romine, Doug Hughes, and Jim Murphy

Absent: None
Minutes

21-pP38 Commissioner Trygstad moved to approve the minutes of the July 13, 2021 Planning
Commission meeting. The motion was supported by Commissioner Sipovic and carried
unanimously.

21-P39 Land Division = 1180 Devin Drive, 1180 Devin Drive, LLC

The Recording Secretary certified the July 23, 2021 publishing and the July 27, 2021 mailing
of notices. A public hearing was held.

Scott Knowlton, on behalf of 1180 Devin Drive LLC, offered to answer any guestions about
the request. Commissioner Westgate asked what the plan is for the property. Mr. Knowlton
stated that they would like to sell the former Cassell Dance building, which was purchased
by them a few years ago, and is now becoming too much for them to care for. He informed
the Commissioners that he had filed the Quit Claim deed the road to the City. Mr. Knowlton
explained that the land division will help them split off the former Cassell Dance building
and combine it with another out-lot that will then be put up for sale. Mr. Knowlton will
retain the remaining portion of the property that has frontage along Sternberg Road.
Commissioner Westgate asked for clarification on which parcels Mr. Knowlton will retain
based on the provided survey.

Commissioner Westgate made a motion to recommend to the City Council that the Land
Division for 1180 Devin Drive be approved to Scott Knowlton, on behalf of the property
owner, 1180 Devin Drive LLC, to create one (1) new parcel as per the submitted survey. The
motion was supported by Commissioner Bush and carried unanimously, with Chair Morano
recusing himself from this agenda item.

21-P40

The Recording Secretary certified the July 23, 2021 publishing and the July 27, 2021 mailing
of notices. A public hearing was held.

Kelli LaCombe, on behalf of Finias Engineering & Design LLC, described the zone change
request to change 1180 Devin Drive from C-2 General Retail to General Industrial (Gl) so
that their company can relocate from Spring Lake to that location. Commissioner Drier
wanted to clarify that this zone change would not create any spot zoning. City Planner, Ted
Woodcock, confirmed that it would not create spot zoning.



08/10/21 Planning Minutes
Page 2

Commissioner Carroll made a motion te recommend to the City Council zone ehange that a
be granted to Finias Engineering & Design LLC, on behalf of the property owner 1180 Devin
Drive LLC, at 1180 Devin Drive based on similar uses in the area and adjacent and it is net
spot zoning. The motion was supported by Commissioner Lowe and carried unanimously,
with Chair Morano recusing himself from this agenda item.

21-P41

The Recording Secretary certified the July 23, 2021 publishing and the July 27, 2021 mailing
of notices. A public hearing was held.

Bob Hendrick, the property owner, requests a zone change for 5417 Grand Haven Road from
Planned Unit Residential Development (PURD) to Planned Unit Development (PUD).
Matthew Smith, on behalf of his daughter, who lives next door to 5417 Grand Haven Road
asked the commission what will be going in on the property, because they had heard a hotel
would be going in there. The Commission informed Mr., Smith that any type of development
on the property would first need approval from the Planning Commission and that they can
come back to voice concerns at that time.

Commissioner Westgate moved to recommend to the City Council that a zone change be
granted to Bob Hendricks at 5417 Grand Haven Road based on zone change not being spot
zoning and the zone change could encourage development on this vacant parcel. The
motion was supported by Commissioner Sipovic and carried unanimously.

General Public Comment
Ted Woodcock addressed the Commissioners regarding how the meeting packets are

recelved and if the hand delivery method is working for everyone. The Commissioners
approve of the delivery method and would like it to continue.

Chaah Lo =

(Savah Romine, Recording Secretary

Meeting adjourned at 5:57 pm.




AGENDA__ o

DATE_9-14-21

4814 Henry Street  Norfon Shores, Michigan 49441 www.norfonshores.org

September 1, 2021

Planning Commission Meeting of September 14, 2021
SUBJECT: Site Plan Approval
2649, 2651, & 2689 Vulcan Street —
Cardinal Senior Management

Chairman and Members

of the
Planning Commission
Ladies and Gentlemen:
Progressive AE, on behalf of developer Cardinal Senior Management, is requesting site plan approval
for a proposed senior living facility at 2649, 2651 & 2689 Vulcan Street. Site plan approval is needed
due to the use being allowed by right in the R-1 Single Family Residential zoning district.

The Planning Commission may use the attached resolution in making a recommendation to the City
Council regarding this request.

Sincerely,

Ted Woodcock
Planning and Zoning Administrator

Attachment
Administration/City Clerk Assessing Division Building Division Finance/Treasurer Fire Prevention Fire Department
(231) 798-4391 (231) 799-6806 (231) 799-6801 (231) 799-6805 (231) 799-6809 (231) 798-2255
Parks/Recreation Planning/Zoning Police Department Public Works Streets Division Water/Sewer
(231) 799-6802 (231) 799-6800 (231) 733-2691 (231) 799-6803 (231) 798-2156 (231) 799-6804

Norton Shores will not discriminate against any individual or group because of race, sex, religion, age,
national origin, color, marital status, handicap or political beliefs or other legally protected characterisfics.



RESOLUTION

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission approves/denies the site plan
for ProgressiveAE, on behalf of Cardinal Senior Management, for the proposed senior living
facility at 2649, 2651, & 2689 Vulcan Street as per the submitted plans.

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Norton Shores, held at the Norton
Shores Branch Library, 705 Seminole Road, on the 14th day of September 2021, the foregoing
resolution was moved for adoption by Commissioner. The motion was supported by
Commissioner.

Ayes:

Nays:

Resolution declared adopted/denied.

Shelly Stibitz, City Clerk



NO"OI'I Shores Internal Memo

September 1, 2021

TO: Planning Commission Members
FROM: Ted Woodcock, Planning and Zoning Administrator TSW
SUBJECT: Site Plan Approval, 2649, 2651, & 2689 Vulcan Street, Cardinal Senior Management

Following, please find comments regarding the site plan approval request for the senior living
facility:

MASTER PLAN

Currently the properties are zoned R-1 Single Family Residential and 2649 Vulcan Street — the
northernmost parcel is designated as “Office” in the approved Master Plan. While the other two
parcels are designated as “Medium Density Residential.” The proposal would be consistent with
the approved Master Plan as the facility will be a live-in facility, so it will be residential in nature.

LAND USE

The proposed land use for the three parcels is two separate buildings —one on each parcel once a
property line adjustment is executed and approved by the City. Each building will have 40 patients,
making up 80 total beds for the facility. There will be plenty of green space and parking on these
parcels as well. There is the possibility for a memory care facility to replace one of the wings of the
buildings in the future.

COMMENTS

City staff is continuing review with the applicant in regards to zoning, water & sewer, fire access,
and engineering. Most comments are minor, such as labeling certain elements like landscaping,
greenbelts, and providing additional measurements. These revisions should not have an effect on
the location, size, or use of the buildings. As stated in the section above, the applicant did disclose
that there could be a memory care facility in the future, however that is not reflected on the plans.



CITY OF NORTON SHORES
4814 HENRY STREET
NORTON SHORES, MICHIGAN 49441

SITE PLAN REVIEW REQUEST

1.  OWNER(s): Wheeler WVAM&%PHONE NUMBER: ¢/é- 43271459

2. EMAIL ¢yar wheelsy @ FAX
Whetlr devgrovp. come GUATAR oA B PreitB ole- 11| - 0909

3. ARCHITECH/ENGINEER TROGRESSE piF  blb-26( - 2604

" i
e g 7 { ~ ~ N A

4. APPLICABLE PARCEL ADDRESS: £ @071~ 2 LE] Vulcan >

N 2
5. PRESENT ZONING: =T oL

6. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:___/4 P /

| (we) swear and attest that | (we) are owners of the above parcel of property and
the information is true and accurate according to my (our) knowledge. | (we) also
grant permission to authorized City Council, Planning Commission, Zoning Board
of ‘Appeals and City staff members to access the above referenced site address
for inspection purposes.

o ST —

7

ALL OWNER/APPLICANTS MUST SIGN



MUSKFGON COUNTY Muskegon County Property Viewer Print

G I ; & Report generated 9/1/2021 at 12:50:17 PM
s This report has been generated from the Muskegon County GIS Property Viewer.

While every effort has been made to provide accurate information,

MUSkegon County Muskegon County and Muskegon County GIS shall not be held liable for the
Pro perty Report information presented herein. All data shall be verified by the municipal assessor.

R N

DG O0

2
4.8
'%Q

'~
e 0 G ot

e -m/mm&'
"F Jm@@mﬁ/@(}& ul\,s- G




12 MAINTENAN

CALL 811 NOTE:

CCONTRAGTOR TO CONTACT 811
SERVICE AT LEAST 3 WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION,

GENERAL SITE LAYOUT NOTES

1 ALLWORKANSHP AND MATERALS SHALL BE ACGOROING T0
ENT MICHIGAN mmmo;musmﬂm\onmnon

2 OONTAEIWDIG'TOLLFREEATiM 7171 THREE (3) DAYS PRIOR
TO THE START OF EXCLUDING SUNDAYS,
AND HOLIDAYS,

3. NODIMENSION MAY BE SCALED. REFER UNCLEAR ITEMS TO THE ENGINEER
FOR INTERPRETATION.

4. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
AS B-B (BACK TO BACK) OR E-E (EDGE OF METAL TO EDGE OF METAL).

5. CONTRACTOR TO PAINT STRIPE ALL PARKING SPACES SHOWN. PAINT
COLOR TO BE YELLOW.

6. UPON REQUEST, ELECTRONIC INFORMATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR SITE
LAYOUT PURPOSES. CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUEST ALL INFORMATION IN
WRITING THR( PROGRESSIVE AE. LAYOUT OF ALL NEW
OONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE BY A LICENSED SURVEYOR.

7. ALLCONCRETE JOINTS SHALL BE TOOLED PER SPECIFICATIONS.

8. CONTRACTOR MUST RESTORE AND REPAIR ANY EXISTING CONDITIONS
DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION. THIS IS TO INCLUDE BURIED UTILITIES,
LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING, SPRINKLING, ETC.

9. ANY AREA DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION TO BE RESTORED TO CONDITION
EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGAN.

10.  ALL PAVEMENT, CURB & GUTTER, SIDEWALK AND UTILITIES WITHIN PUBLIC
RIGHT OF WAY SHALL MEET CITY OF NORTON SHORES STANDARDS.

ZONING NOTES

ZONEDISTRICT:  R-1

PROPOSED: R4

ADJACENT ZONING: g&f—m (GENERAL OFFICE) SOUTHR-1, WEST-R-1
-1

PARCEL SIZE: 0

REQUIRED SETBACKS:

FRONT: 25

SIDE: 10 FEET AND 6 FEET TO EQUAL 18 FEET
SIDE: 30 FEET

TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS: 80
PARKING REQUIRED: 27 SPACES
PARKING REQUIREMENTS: 1 SPACE PER 3 UNITS (80 UNITS = 27 SPACES)

PARKING PROVIDED:
TOTAL SPACES: 24 SPACES WITH 4 BARRIER FREE SPOTS=28 TOTAL

PAVEMENT LEGEND

@ SITE LAYOUT PLAN

1=200 0

P\89850004\03 WIP'CI DISCIPLINEYCM10-C201 SITE LAYOUT PLAN.Awg markhame:

272021 254:41 PM

STANDARD CURB AND GUTTER

PITCH OUT CURB AND GUTTER

1172° (165 LB/SYD) MDOT 38A BIT.
WEARING COURSE

MDOT TACK COAT @ 0.15 GAUSY
11/2° (165 LB/SYD) MDOT 13A BIT.

12" SUBBASE, CL Il SAND OR
AAPPROVED NATIVE MATERIAL

4° CONCRETE

m‘;m’m@ COMPACTED
SUBBASE

6° AGGREGATE BASE, MDOT 21AA MOD

|ae

CARDINAL SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Q
=
S
J
Q
—
a
O
—
Q
[ -
=
LLl
=
o
@)
m—l
L
S
L
(an]
14
L
=
Ll
L
X
=

"GROUP

ISSUANCE
SITE PLAN REVIEW
08232021

REVISIONS
NO. DATE  DESCRIPTION

FLENUMBER a9650004
PROFESSIONAL P
DRAWN BY cu
CHECKED BY

SITE LAYOUT

C201

1811 4 Milo Rd NE 1Grand Rapids, Ml 48525 1616.381.26584 | viww.propressiveae.com

VULCAN STREET, NORTON SHORES MI



AGENDA__Ub

DATE_Q-14-2|

4814 Henry Street  Norfon Shores, Michigan 49441 www.nortonshores.org

September 2, 2021

Planning Commission Meeting of September 14, 2021
SUBJECT: Special Use Permit
6025 Harvey Street, Oasis of Norton
Shores, Senior Living Facility

Chairman and Members
of the
Planning Commission

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Paradigm Design, on behalf of property owner TRK Land Holdings LLC, is requesting a Special Use
Permit and site plan approval for a proposed senior living facility at 6025 Harvey Street. A Special Use
Permit is being requested due to any use in the Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning district
requiring a Special Use Permit.

The Planning Commission may use the attached resolution in making a recommendation to the City
Council regarding this request.

Ted Woodcock
Planning and Zoning Administrator

Attachment
Administration/City Clerk Assessing Division Building Division Finance/Treasurer Fire Prevention Fire Department
(231) 798-4391 (231) 799-6806 (231) 799-6801 (231) 799-6805 (231) 799-6809 (231) 798-2255
Parks/Recreation Planning/Zoning Police Department Public Works Streets Division Water/Sewer
(231) 799-6802 (231) 799-6800 (231) 733-2691 (231) 799-6803 (231) 798-2156 (231) 799-6804

Norton Shores will not discriminate against any individual or group because of race, sex, religion, age,
national origin, color, marital status, handicap or political beliefs or other legally protected charadterisfics.



RESOLUTION

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the
City Council that special land use approval be granted/denied to Paradigm Design, on behalf of
property owner TRK Land Holdings LLC, to construct a senior living facility to 6025 Harvey Street
as per the submitted plans.

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Norton Shores, held at the Norton
Shores Branch Library, 705 Seminole Road, on the 14th day of September 2021, the foregoing
resolution was moved for adoption by Commissioner. The motion was supported by
Commissioner.

Ayes:

Nays:

Resolution declared adopted/denied.

Shelly Stibitz, City Clerk



RESOLUTION

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission approves/denies the site plan
for Paradigm Design, on behalf of property owner TRK Land Holdings LLC, to construct a senior
living facility to 6025 Harvey Street as per the submitted plans contingent upon approval of the
Special Use Permit by City Council.

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Norton Shores, held at the Norton
Shores Branch Library, 705 Seminole Road, on the 14th day of September 2021, the foregoing
resolution was moved for adoption by Commissioner. The motion was supported by
Commissioner.

Ayes:

Nays:

Resolution declared adopted/denied.

Shelly Stibitz, City Clerk



NO"DH Shores Internal Memo

September 2, 2021

TO: Planning Commission Members
FROM: Ted Woodcock, Planning and Zoning Administrator TS‘/\/
SUBJECT: Special Use Permit Request, 6025 Harvey Street, Oasis of Norton Shores

Following, please find comments regarding the Special Use Permit request for Oasis of Norton
Shores, a senior living facility:

MASTER PLAN

Currently the property is zoned Planned Unit Development (PUD) and it is designated as “High
Density Residential” in the approved Master Plan. The proposed facility would have residents living
there full-time and would be a good transitional use between the road and the higher density
apartments to the west.

LAND USE

The applicant has proposed a senior living facility of approximately 60,500 square feet with a
potential future memory care addition. Some amenities residents of the Oasis of Norton Shores
can expect are: restaurant-style dining, housekeeping services, daily activities “designed to
enhance daily living”, physical fitness programs and much more.

COMMENTS

The applicant is continuing to work with City staff on their site plan, only minor comments remain
as the building is already there with appropriate parking, landscaping, etc. There is a need for more
senior living facilities in Norton Shores and this request helps fulfill that need.
























